
The Cedars – Long Term and Memory Care 11-1 13682A 

Section 11 – Significant Natural Features 

11.1 Coordination with Regulatory 

This project is not proposing to impact any wetlands or other significant natural features. Included as an 
attachment to this section is a correspondence with the MDEP regarding the required permitting for this 
project. 

 

11.2 Natural Features Study 

A Natural Features Study is included as an attachment to this section, and the delineation is provided on 
the Plans. No impacts to wetlands are proposed as part of the project improvements. 

 

11.3 Soils 

Information regarding existing soils is included as an attachment to this section and is further reported in 
Section 12: Stormwater Treatment. 
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Kathleen O. Sculley

From: Cherry, David <David.Cherry@maine.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, September 26, 2017 9:14 AM
To: Michael A. Guethle
Cc: Sirois, Alison
Subject: The Cedars Long-Term Care Facility - Portland

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Completed

Hi Michael, 
 
I’ve looked over the pre‐application materials you provided for The Cedars and have determined that the Department 
does not have jurisdiction over the project.  In cities with delegated authority, the threshold for the Department taking 
over the project is 7 acres of structure area, which this project still under, approximately 5 acres currently.  Any wetland 
alterations will need a permit from the Department under the Natural Resources Protection Act. 
 
Please let me know if you have any questions. 
 
Thanks, 
 
David Cherry 
Environmental Specialist 
Maine Department of Environmental Protection 
Bureau of Land Resources 
312 Canco Road 
Portland, ME 04103 
david.cherry@maine.gov 
207‐523‐9807 
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Jan Wiegman 
Wright-Pierce 
99 Maine Street 
Topsham, ME  04086 
 
Subject:   Wetland Delineation – The Cedars, Ocean Avenue, Portland 
 
Dear Jan:  
 
In response to your request, on August 25, 2016 wetland boundaries were delineated at The 
Cedars Senior Living Community (the “Site”) located at 630 Ocean Avenue, Portland.  The 
position of the wetland boundary was subsequently surveyed by Titcomb Associates and is 
depicted on plans of the Site. 
 
Wetland Delineation 
 
The boundary of the wetland at the Site was delineated with sequentially numbered, pink flagging 
so that the location and extent of wetland can be taken into consideration for future site design and 
permitting plans.  Evidence indicative of wetland from three parameters – vegetation, soils and 
hydrology – was used to identify and delineate the wetland in accordance with the 1987 US Army 
Corps of Engineers Wetland Delineation Manual and the subsequent Regional Supplement to the 
US Army Corps of Engineers Wetland Delineation Manual:  Northcentral and Northeast Region 
(January 2012).  With the exception of unusual or atypical situations, evidence of wetland must be 
exhibited by all three parameters for an area or position to be designated as wetland.    
    
The freshwater wetland community on the Site is dominated by trees and shrubs that include:  red 
maple (Acer rubrum), American elm (Ulmus americana), speckled alder (Alnus incana), highbush 
blueberry (Vaccinium corymbosum), meadowsweet (Spiraea latifolia), jewelweed (Impatiens 
capensis), wool grass (Scripus cyperinus), cattail (Typha spp.), sensitive fern (Onoclea sensibilis), 
and purple loosestrife (Lythrum salicaria).  All of these plants are identified as “Obligate” (OBL), 
“Facultative Wetland” (FACW) or “Facultative” (FAC) indicators of wetland by the 2016, State 
of Maine National Wetland Plant List prepared by the US Army Corps of Engineers and are 
therefore hydrophytes.  By the National Wetland Inventory System, the wetland would be 
classified as palustrine deciduous scrub shrub (PSS1) wetland (Photographs 1 and 2).  
 
The US Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS) identifies soils beneath wetland areas at 
the Site as being represented by the Scantic Series (Sn).  These very deep, nearly level, poorly 
drained silt loams are classified as a hydric soil.  Soils were also examined directly with a hand 
auger.  Below an upper 8 inch thick dark gray (5Y4/1) silt loam horizon, a saturated olive gray 
(5Y5/2) silt loam was present containing 5-10% dark yellowish brown (2.5Y4/4) redox 
concentrations.  Characteristics observed in the sample are representative of hydric soil indicator 
criteria F3:  Depleted Matrix. 
 
Hydrology is considered to be the “driving force” of wetlands (Mitch and Gosselink, 1986) and 
inherently is responsible for the adaptation of certain vegetation (hydrophytes) and the 
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development of specific soil characteristics (hydric) indicative of wetlands.  At the time of the 
survey, evidence of wetland hydrology observed at the Site included:  soils saturated within 12-
inches of the surface, small localized areas of surface water, sediment deposits, water-stained 
leaves and drainage patterns indicative of wetlands. 
 
 
Regulatory Jurisdiction 
 
Activities in and adjacent to wetlands at the Site are regulated by the Maine Department of 
Environmental Protection (MDEP) under the provisions of the Natural Resources Protection Act 
(NRPA) and associated Wetland and Waterbodies Protection Rules (Chapter 310).  Certain 
characteristics are relevant to whether a wetland regulated as a “freshwater wetland of special 
significance” (Ch 310 §4A 1-8)  
 
The wetland at the Site: 
   

• does not contain a “critically imperiled (S1)” (Ch 310 §3F) or “imperiled (S2)” (Ch 310 
§3L)  community as defined by the Natural Areas Program; 

• would not be identified as “significant wildlife habitat” (38 MRSA §480-B(10)) by the 
Maine Department of Inland Fisheries and Wildlife; 

• is not located within 250 feet of a “coastal wetland” (38 MRSA §480-B(2)); 
• is not located within 250 feet of a “great pond” (38 MRSA §465-A); 
• does not contain more than 20,000 square feet of open water or aquatic or emergent marsh 

vegetation; 
• does not occur in a 100-year floodplain mapped by the Federal Emergency Management 

Agency (FEMA); 
• is not a “peatland” (Ch 310 §3P) and  
• does not contain or occur within 25 feet of a “river stream or brook” (Ch 310 §4A (8))”. 

 
Therefore, there are no freshwater wetlands of special significance at the Site. 
 
Typically, activities requiring alteration of wetland covering less than 15,000 square feet are 
eligible for Tier 1 permitting and in excess of this and up to an acre (43,560 square feet) a Tier 2 
permit would be necessary under the NRPA.  Excluding specific activities authorized by Permit 
by Rule (PBR - Chapter 305) provisions of the NRPA, activities in excess of one acre would 
require a Tier 3 permit.  However, cumulative wetland impacts are taken into consideration 
relative to the required Tier of permitting and due to previous wetland impacts at the Site 
(authorized by MDEP permit L-22483TG-B-M) future wetland impacts would most likely require 
a Tier 3 permit. 
 
Wetlands at the Site are also regulated by the Corps as “waters of the United States” under the 
provisions of Section 404 of the Clean Water Act.  To authorize minimal-impact activities in 
wetlands, including placement of fill, the Corps makes use of a General Permit (GP) for the State 
of Maine.  Such impacts to wetlands are broken down into two permit categories under the GP 
based on the following area thresholds:  Category 1 – less than 15,000 square feet and Category 2 
– 15,000 square feet to three acres.  Activities eligible for Category 1 activities can be authorized 
without an application but a Notification Form submitted must be submitted to the Corps. 
Category 2 activities however are reviewed as applicable in conjunction with the US Fish and 
Wildlife Service, the US Environmental Protection Agency and the National Marine Fisheries 
Services, and require an application and written approval from the Corps.  Previous wetland 
impacts at the Site approved by Corps permit NAE-2005-2407 would also be taken into account 
for determining eligibility and requirements for Category 2 permitting.   
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Wetland Functional Assessment 
 
Approval of wetland impacts exceeding 15,000 sq ft typically require that a wetland functional 
assessment be conducted.  Although the future development footprint and potential impacts to 
wetlands are not yet finalized, a functional assessment was submitted with the July 2005 permit 
applications approved by the MDEP and the Corps.  The functional assessment method used at 
that time remains unchanged and little change in conditions are evident in and adjacent to 
wetlands at the Site that would influence the associated functions and values.  Evaluation of the 
future footprint and design impacts is recommended when development plans are finalized: 
however it appears the earlier functional assessment would continue to be valid and relevant.       
   
 
Do not hesitate to contact me at your earliest convenience at cole.peters@powereng.com or 
207.869.1432 with questions or comments regarding the information presented above.  
 
Sincerely, 
 

DRAFT 
                                                    
Cole Peters 
Professional Wetland Scientist 
  

mailto:cole.peters@powereng.com
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Photograph 1  Westward overview of the PSS1 wetland located on the south side of the 
parking area adjacent to the Rehabilitation and Skilled Care entrance to The Cedars (at right).  

 
Photograph 2 Southeastward view along the west side of the Rehabilitation and Skilled Care 
building where a small portion of the PSS1 wetland is dominated by red maple trees.  
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